
Here’s what was making 

news in Rabun County 100 

years ago: 

After Georgia’s first major 

environmental battle to save 

the falls at Tallulah, Georgia 

Power began constructing the 

first of five dams on the Tallu-

lah River in 1912. In August, 

the sixth drowning victim in 

fifteen years was pulled from 

the whirlpool at the foot of 

Tempesta Falls in Tallulah 

Gorge. After a search of three 

days, “the bruised body of 

Leland Smith of Mississippi 

was found a quarter mile 

down river from where the 

tragedy occurred.” 

90 years ago: 

In 1922, a front page article 

from the Clayton Tribune 

urged that women register to 

vote. The 19th amendment to 

the United States Constitution 

was passed in August, 1920 

giving women the vote. “May 

6 is the last day in which la-

dies of your county may regis-

ter in order to vote this year. 

…I hope you will ask your 

lady friends to do the same. …

This matter is important to our 

section and state.” 

Also that year, Austrian immi-

grant Augustus Andreae built 

a rustic hotel of his own de-

sign catering to visitors to the 

new Lake Rabun. The lake 

had been impounded by the 

building of Mathis Dam by 

Georgia Power in 1915.     

Andreae enlisted his two 

daughters to work as maids. 

The Lake Rabun Hotel only 

operated in the summer, as 

there was no heat. 

80 years ago: 

In March 1932, the telephone 

company installed a free 

phone in the home of Clayton 

police chief, Mart Hollifield, 

so that Clayton residents 

would have a number to call 

for emergencies. “For police 

and fire, call 69.” 

On March 24, “One Killed as 

Cyclone Sweeps through Val-

ley.” Crossing the mountain 

from Lake Burton into the 

Germany Valley and then 

across Black Rock Mountain 

into Sylvan Lake Falls, a 

church was completely blown 

away and many homes were 

seriously damaged. 

75 years ago: 

In April of 1937, Rabun Coun-

ty’s first public library opened 

in temporary quarters inside 

the courthouse with Mrs. Per-

cy Randolph as librarian. The 

most popular book in the li-

brary one month later was 

Gone With the Wind, “taking 

the cake as the most popular 

by leaps and bounds.” 

In August, one of the Tallulah 

Falls hotels that survived the 

great fire of 1921 that almost 

wiped out the town of Tallulah 

Falls, was destroyed by fire. 

The Cliff House, a 50 room 

hotel built by the late R.H. 

Moss of Athens in the 1880s, 

was a total loss after a fire 

escaped the cook stove. It was 

located on the edge of Tallu-

lah Gorge directly across the 

street from the train depot and 

was never rebuilt. 

 

70 years ago: 

In January 1942, the Tire Ra-

tioning Board had only 9 tires 

for passenger cars and 24 tires 

for trucks that could be dis-

tributed in January 

because of the rub-

ber shortage 
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• Please visit our       

museum and research 

library on Mondays 

and Fridays from 

10:00 until 2:00 and 

on Wednesdays from 

12:30 until 4:30. 

• Group tours by        

appointment 

Inside this issue 

Ads from Rabun’s Past 

Ad from June 30, 1927 

Tallulah Falls Dam with a one-lane bridge across it  
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caused by World War II. 

Mrs. J.C. Dover, head of the Red Cross 

sewing room, announced that each 

Wednesday volunteers would sew gar-

ments for war relief families and others 

who needed disaster assistance. 

As of July 23, 98 Rabun County men 

were serving with U.S. Armed Forces in 

World War II. 

60 years ago: 

In May 1952, a New York manufacturer 

called Clayburne established a new man-

ufacturing plant in Rabun County that 

employed up to 400  people. The opera-

tion was to be called Clayton Manufac-

turing Company and manufactured gar-

ments. The building had  40,000 square 

feet of floor space and construction be-

gan in July. 

In June, it was announced that the Clay-

ton to Hiawassee road that had been un-

der construction for 6 years was finally 

finished. “It is a good road with an ample 

supply of gravel placed on it...and many 

people will want to travel on it for the 

scenery.” 

50 years ago: 

In 1962, J.H. Ledbetter of Mountain City 

claimed his amethyst mine to be the larg-

est in the United States. “Amethysts are 

being mined everyday…and visitors are 

amazed at the work in progress. The 

stones come from a bed of 100 square 

feet about 12 feet deep.” The 81 year old 

Mr. Ledbetter lived in a one-room house 

without heat or electricity. The mine was 

at the end of a steep, crooked, narrow 

road that could not be negotiated by ve-

hicle. 

40 years ago: 

In January of 1972, three years before the 

fire that destroyed Rabun County High 

School, the State Fire Marshall declared 

it to be unsafe for occupancy. 

April of 1972 saw the closure of the old 

county landfill in Tiger which was an 

eyesore, a fire hazard and a pest control 

problem. The new landfill on Boggs 

Mountain Road opened earlier that year. 

In September, 75 Clayton merchants 

asked the city to remove Main Street and 

Savannah Street parking meters and pro-

vide off-street parking for business own-

ers and employees. 

30 years ago: 

On January 14, 1982, a record cold tem-

perature for the date was set at minus 4 

degrees. 

In June, the American Civil Liberties 

Union (ACLU) prevailed in a lawsuit to 

have a lighted religious cross symbol 

removed from state property at Black 

Rock Mountain State Park. The issue 

was the promotion of a particular reli-

gion, Christianity,  on property owned by 

all state taxpayers. 

 

Clayburne Manufacturing facility in north Clayton shortly after its opening in 1953 

Rabun County High School burning in 

March of 1975. 

The metal structure that held the  

controversial religious symbol in Black 

Rock Mountain State Park-1970s 
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Signs of the Times 
 

December 22, 1932 

November 3, 1932 

January 26, 1928 

February 27, 1930 

March 21, 1929 

September 25, 1952 

May 5, 1932 
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June 6, 1929 
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New Special Online Exhibit: 

The Golden Age of Rabun Tourism 

From the late 1880s until interstate highways and air-conditioning changed habits 

and destinations, Rabun County’s beautiful scenery and delightful climate brought 

visitors by train and car loads. Although tourism is still a major economic boon, 

hotel rooms in 1910 no doubt exceeded today’s numbers. 

Tourists inside Tallulah 

Gorge at L’Eau d’Or 

Falls, circa 1900 


